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Aspris Holdco Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022

The THrectors present their strategic repost of the peried from 2.8 July 2021 to 31 August 2022,

‘Throughout the document, references to the “Company® refer to Aspris Holdco Limited. References to the “Group”
refer to Aspris Holdee Limited and its subsidiaries. All amounts are presented in GBP £, unless otherwise stated.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is (o act as an investaient holding company.

The Group is a leading provider of specialist education and care services to young people in the UK. Educating and
caring for a wide spectrum of specialist education and mental healtheare needs, including autism, leamning difficultics,
social, emotional and mental health conditions (SEMHD). In addition, the Group provides speeialist cducation and
mental health services lo young people and adults respectively across the Middle East, The Group operates via two
primary divisions:

» The UK divisions provide education and residential care and assessment for children with specialist
emotional and behavioural difficulties or autisiic spectium disorders.

¢ The Middle Easl divisions provide education to young people in the UAE, and mental healthcare and
wellbeing services to adults and young people in UAE and KSA.

Business Review
Development of the business

The Company was incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 August 2021 acquired 100% of the sharcholding
of Aspris Chikdren’s Services Limited {“*ACSL") (previously named Priory Education Services Limited) through the
100% owned subsidiary Aspris Bidco Limited. These financial staiements represent the resulis of the activities of the
Company since incorporation, the activities of the Aspris group since the date of acquisition and the subsequent
acquisitiuns and disposals described below. Prior to the acquisition of ACSI. the Group did not have any trading or
operations and so the metrics quoted below as pact of the ‘Perforinance of the Business’ section are for the bwelve
months ending 3 1st August 2022,

On 28 January 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased 100% of the shareholding in SC Topeo Limiled, From this
date the consolidated resnlts and activities of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandcastle Care’) are represented in these financial
statements.

On 31 March 2022 ACSL acquired 100% of the shareholding in Hollyblue Heallhcare (Arden) limited, latterly
renamed Aspris {Arden) Limited. From this date the results and activities of this acquired entity ave represented in
these financial statements. Please see note 17 to the financial statements for additional information an the above
business combinations completed during the period.

[n addition to the Group®s primary focus of providing high quality education and care to alf those within ils services,
the Group has also been focused on the successful completion of the following key developments:

= Separation [tom the Priory Group of companies. Whilst the operations of ACSL were largely autonomous
from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it by
the Priory Group. These services continued under a transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group's acquisition of ACSI.. This transitional stage included the implementation of Aspris® own
standalone syslems and support infrasltucture, the process of which was completed by 1% January 2023, with
all services received under this transitonal arrangement ceased to be provided from that date.



Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Development of the business (continued)

Acquisition and integration of Sandcastle Care inlo the Aspris Group. Sandcastle Care provides residental
care places for over 100 young people, primarily in the North West of the UK. These services ave similar in
nature to those already provided by the Group. The integration and incorporation of this business into the
Group has heen a focus for members of the managsment team during the period.

Review of Group strategy ard long-term plan, Following the successful separation from Priory Group, the
Group has urxlertaken a broad review of the key stratcgic direction and objectives of the business. The
completion of this process provides the overarching framework within which the business is managed and
direcled by the Board and senior management,

Continued expansion of our Middle East operations. Since establishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,
ACSL has steadily grown the provision of services in the region to cater for the education and care necds of
both young pecple and adults, including geographic expansion into KSA, Whilst the Middle Fast division
remains small relative to the primary UK operations {please refer to note 4 to the financial sialements for
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August 2022), the region represents a central part of the
Group’s development strategy.

Performance of the Business

The key financial and non-financial performance indicators during the period were as follows:

Key KPIs 2022
Tumover ' £179.2m
Operating profit before Tmpairment losses and Exceptional costs £23.im
Quality 83.2%
Capacily 1,910
Occupancy 1,660
Oceupancy % 86.9%
Annual Growth in Middle Bast patient appointments 51.1%
Notes:

1. Operatiog profil measure of £23. 1 is equal to the Group’s Operating loss £4.7m stated before Exceptional costs of £7.8m, Impairment
tosses of £19.7m and Other losses of £0.3m

2. Quality, Cepacity and Occupancy metrics retale 1o the UK business only, unless stated

3. Capagity an Occupancy quoted are averages for the period on a non-proforma basis, with dual placements included as a single unit of
capacity and oocupancy




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the peried to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review (continued}

Quality of our services

A primary indicator of the Group’s performance is the level of Quality of the services we provide to those in our
care.

Regulatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majority of our UK services are regulated by the
Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills {* Ofsted’), and in Scotland and Wales by their
local equivalent. All schools and children®s homes must be licensed, and the relevani regulators award quality
ratings to each service. In Abu Dhabi, the school operated by the Group is regulated by the Abu Dhabi Department
of Education and Knowledge (*ADEK’} but is also subject to British School Overseas inspections. Tn addition, a
limited number of cur services are also regulated the Care Quality Commission ('CQC?) in England, and, in
Scotland, Wales, Northern Ireland, and the Middle East, by the local equivalent.

Within the UK the Group achieved an average % of facilities rated as Good or above by their respective regulators
of 83.2%. This is abave the national benchinark leve! published by Ofsted but is below where the business’
objectives are in this ares. The provision of the best quality service is a key priority and the business is focused on
vontinuous improvement in this area, supported by increased investment in our support functions that direclly or
indirectly support the quality of our services.

Within the Middle East, the Group’s specialist education operations in Abu Dhabi {the first dedicated autism school
in Abu Dhabi for Emirati students in partnership with ADEK) underwent the first major inspection of a dedicated
anlism schoo! in the vegion. The outcome of this inspection was formally announced on I* November 2022, with the
school achieving an Outstending rating acrass all areas. This further demonsirates the Group’s csiablished delivery
of exceplional leve! specialist educatien services beyond the Group’s primary UK market.

Results for the period

The Group delivered high quality services to meet the needs of a wide spectrum of young pecple, families, Local
Autherities and communities across the UK and Middie East. With an average number of' 1,660 young people using
our services in the UK during the period and (80 young people in the Middle East. In addition, the volume of outpatient
appointments in our Middle East Wellbeing centres increased by 51.1% vs the equivalent prior period, driven partly
by the opening of fwo new centres th Abu Dhabi and Saudi Arabia.

The results for the year ave set out in the consolidated Income Statement on page 26 and the financial position of the
Group as at 31 August 2022 is set out in the consolidated Slatement of Financial Position on page 28. Group revenue
for the year was £179.2m and Operaling profit before exceptional costs, impairment loss and other [osses was £23.1m,
which represents an operating margin of 12.9% of revenue. Key factors of the aperating profitabilily of the business
include the number of service users in owr facilities, the availability and cost of staffing and the cosi of associated non-
wage costs required to support the young people and aur operations more generally.

The Group’s net loss for the period was £27.1m, which was after charging £19.7m impairment to goodwill relating to
the Sandcastle division, and after £7.8m of exceptional costs, these primacily relate to the costs incurred in relation to
the corporate transactions undertaken and ouilined ahove and in note 17. Further details of these exceptional charges
and impatrment are given in notes 10 and 15 to the financial statements,

The Group’s financial position and underlying operating cash generation is positive, with net assets of £92.0m at the
close of the period and net cash flow from operating aclivilies during the period of £34.2m.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Rusiness Review (coutinued)

Results for the period (continued)

The lavgest component ofour cost base is the wages and related oncosts of our staff, svhich represents 67% of operating
costs.

Staff arc our primary resource and the Group prioritises the wellbeing, retention and recruitment of our workforce,
This includes increased investment in staff wages, but also in a range of measures designed to increase staff wellbeing

and engagement.

Staff shortages have been a feature of the reporting period, with a small number of our availabic residential places
being offline due to these constraints, Despite Lhese factors the financial performance of the Group was inline with the
original business plan suppoiting the acquisition of ACSL.

Future developments and strategy

Management consider the Group to be in a good position to expand the provision of its services in both the UK and
Middle East, Building on its existing high quality provision and strong reputation within each region te provide
esscntial services to a greater number of people in the communitics that it serves,

The Group strategy prioritises the improvement of quality and utilisation across all our existing facilitics, in parallet
with continuing 1o expand the specialist education aspects of the business, With the planned opening of hew education
capacity at cxisting and newly identified siles, being complemented by the targeled and selective acquisition of
existing specialist educalion providers,

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent with this strategy, the Group completed the acquisition of
a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS Holdings Limiled. The acquired business, and its wholly owned
subsidiaties, provide specialist education for up o approximately 100 primary and sccondary school aged young
people in the East of England, To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group
entered into an extension of its available external debi facilities with its existing lenders. This new growth facility was
agreed and effective from 8 February 2023.

In addition, after the close of the reporting period the Group completed a reorganisation of its UK operations. This
reolganisation is aimed at improving and strengthening the management structure to increase focus on delivering on
the Group’s objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utilisation
across our portfolio, by increasing transparency and management communication through all levels of the business.

In the Middle East, the Group is growing via the maturing of its recently opened Wellbeing Cenires and via wider
opportunities to expand the education offering across region. Tn KSA the Group opened a Wellbeing Centre in
Riyadh through its joint venture with a local partner that was entered into in 2020. The Group continues 1o view
current and future local partnerships in the region as a key avenue for growth,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Rislks and Uncertainties

The Group can be impacted by a range of external factors. The principal factors are the availability and retention of
the appropriate number of trained and qualified staff, the macro-economic environment resulting in increased inflation
and increased interest rates, changes in the UK government’s policy towards the funding of specialist education and
carc, changes in the regulatory regime, competitive threats from other providers and the loss of key individuals, The
following are the most significant risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

Faiture to comply with regulation and increused regulatory costs

All of the Group's services arc subject to a high level of regulation by various regulatory bodies. f.aws and
regulations are evolving within the sector (and may be introduced in the fulure) that could impose increased costs on
the Group’s operations. The Group is unable to predict the content of new legislation and/er regulations and their
ceffect on its business.

Inspections by regulators are carried out on both an announced and unannounced basis, dependent on the specific
regulatory provisions relaling to different care or education services, ‘The failure to comply with relevant regulations,
that therefore leads to the determination of regulatory non-compliance, or the failure of the Group to cure any defect
nated in an inspection report could result in the revocation or imposition of conditions on the registration of any
service or a decrease in or cessation of, services provided by the Group at one or more of its fucilities.

To mitigate these risks, the quality of care is monitored by an cxperienced team and through the establishment of
rohust policics and procedures. The team are independent of the operating divisions and report directly o the Board.
Homes are regularly audited by the team to ensure compliance with care standards and action plans are drawn up in
appropriate cases. Risks also mitigated by investing in the legal and compliance team, and in recruitment and
training. Where changes in legislation can be predicted, the Group models the impact the chianges will have in
advance of the legislation being implemented.

Lmployees

The Group’s performance depends on its operationat staff at our schools and residential homes. The managers of owr
facilities, and thejr respective site deams, are essential for the provision of our services. The loss of key individuals
and the inability to recruit people with the right experience and skills from the local community could adversely
impact the Group’s results.

T'he relevant [abour markets for certain of our services have becotne mare chalienging over the reporting peried and
may continue to be challenging, or become more so, in the future. This may lead to an increase in the number of
staff vacancies across the Group and therefore restrict the proportion of our capacity that can be fully operational
and/or slow future growth prospects. Whilsi the challenges have been less evident in the Education portion of the
business, as compared to the residential aspects of our services, it has nevertheless been a factor across the Group,

To mitigate these issues the Group has implemenled & wide range of measures to enhance both our recruitment and
retention of staffl These initiatives arc led by dedicated senior management from aur Human Resources department,
along with our L.earning and Development {unction, and are targeted at improving overall employee welfare and to
ensure our staff offering, both financial and non-finaneial, is competitive within the markets in which we operate.

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Direciors take steps to ensure competitive salary levels across the Group and
have sought to increase across salaties across the Group during the period to aid retention and recruitment, with
specific consideration te the cost-of-living increases on all staff caused by the macro-economic environment.

However, there is a risk that these salary levels are not sufficient to improve the Group’s staff metrics and therefore
further constraints on cur services due to staff shortages may be possible.
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Strategic Report for the period o 31 August 2022 {continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (cantinued)

Non-Wage supplies and cost inflation

In addition (o workforee remuneration, the Group alsu incurs costs on a range of supplics, including food, education
supplics, energy/utilities and rental expenses. The current macre-cconomic backdrop places increasing pressure on
the availability and cosl of centain key supplies.

With encigy, and other bulk product supply, challenges across Europe driving higher inflation levels than in
previous years lhere is increased price pressure on the Group’s cost base, There is a risk thal these costs increase
further and, whilst they are a minority of the Group's cost base, increases could still be material,

In addition, thets is a risk that ceriuin supplies wiil take longer to source and therefore substitute products may need
to be found, there is a risk this could cause disruption to our services and thal allernative supplies may be more
coslly than those supplies which they veplace.

In addition, certain supplies, such as food, are sourced from a iow number of major nalionz! suppliers and therefore
there may be a risk that distuption of service at one supplier, or price changes by those suppliers, could have an impact
on the Group.

To mitigate these areas (ke Group has a dedicated procurement funetion focused on optimising our sources, cosis of
and security of supply. The Group engages on & regular busis with all ourkey suppliers to ensure effective management
of these risks. In addition, the Group seeks to agree pricing and security of supply on a forward basis where possible
and appropriate, for example on our energy supplies, to increase visibility over cost und reduce supply side risks,
Management of these risks include maintaining relationships with secondary source supplics to ensure options are
available to mitigate disruptions in supply from a particular provider.

Loss of revenue front contracts with UIC local authorities

A substantial proportion of the Group's {JK revenue derives from publicly funded Local Authorities. The Group
expects to continue to rely on the abilily and willingness of these bodies 1o pay for the Group’s services, Whilst
there is an obligation for Local Autherities to fund the provision of such services to young people there is a risk that
either budpet constraints or other financial pressures could cause such publicly funded bodies to allocate less money
to the types of service that the Group provides, or that political change or policy changes mean that fewer services
are coniracted from independent sector providers,

In addition, there is a risk that these Local Authorities are not able to mect the increased costs of us viably providing
services at certain facilitics, due (o the above-mentioned cost pressures.

To mitigate these risks the Group regularly assesses services provided to ensure they represent value for money and
where necessary repositions services to align with demand. Through the Group’s dedicated Bidding and
Commissioning team, and other members of cur senior management team, the Group engages in regular
communication with our Local Authorities cuslomers to ensure these is clear and open dialogue with out key
customers.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertajnties (continued)

IT security and Data Protectlon

‘I'he Group®s I'T infrastructure is an integral part of its operating capability. This infrastructure provides connectivity,
hardware and software applications to all of our facilities and central functions. Furthermore, the Group holds [arge
velumes of sensitive data, a portion of which resides within our IT environment.

Thete is a risk that 1he systems or applications fail or are subject to a securily breach that temporarily prevents their
use and therefore impacts our services. In addition, such an event may compromise sensitive data held within the
Group relating to its customers, which could expuse the Group to further liability due to such a breach.

“The Group invests significantly in meeting these potential risks. With 4 dedicated 1T department reasonable for the I'F
envirenment and security, complimented by external expert advice and services procured to enhance key aspects of
Data Protection and Cyber security.

Impact from the risks related to the Covid-19 pandemic

The global cutbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 represemted a significant source of uncertainty within the wider
mecroeconomic environment, including the sectors in which the Group operates. Disruption was cxperienced by most
sectors, and the Group’s services were not immune to these impacts.

Given the nature of our services the Group continued to operate its {ull service provision, with all schools and homes
remaining open in the UK, and our Middie East Wellbeing centres moving success{ully to an online appointment
based model. The teams across the Group performed with outstanding professionalism to ensure we continued o
deliver essential education and care to alt those that rely on our services.

Whilst there were notable staff absences due to self~isolation, and the resulting operational challenges, the long term
financial Impact on the Group was not significant, and with the exception of the longer term consivainis that have
impacted the general labour market referenced above, the Group is currently not impacled by the pandemic,

The Diirectors believe any further similar oulbreak would be met with a similar successful response, but there is a risk
that a new Covid variant, or other pandemic, may have n greater impact on the Group’s ability to provide its services.

To mitigate this the Group has clear and rebust infection control policies, including contingency planning for siaffiug
in the event of a further cutbreak.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continucd)
Pringcipal Risks and Uncertainties {(continued)

Finan¢inl ¥ish management

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credil, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business. The primavy financial risks that the Group is exposed to are noted below, for further detail on these
financial risks please sce note 27.

Credit risk

Financial instruments which potentizlly expose the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and trado receivables.
Cash is only deposited with major financial Institutions that satisfy certain credil criteria.

Credit risk is not considered o be significant given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entities,
and payment is taken [n advance or at time of treatment for privately funded healtheare services st our Wellbeing
centres,

Tnterest rate 1isk

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities, All (e external debt of the
Group containg a variable element which is linked to the Sterling Overnight index Average, published by the Bank of
England. Senior loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 Augusl 2026,

The Group reguiariy reviews the options available to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently does not have
a hedged component to the interest burden on its external debt. In tight of prevailing market conditions, and the high
cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe the Group has sufticient capacity to address the risk of interest rate
rises.

Liguidity risls

The Group prepares annual and monthiy cash flovw forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects.
The Group hus sufficient available facilities and cash flows from profits to fund curret commitments. The Group has
aceess o a Revolving Credit Facility that is available to support the Group’s operational liquidity requirements at the
signing of the financial statements the majority of this Revelving Credit Facility was undrawn.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statement

The following Section 172 statement, which is required by the Companies Act 2006, describes how the Directors
have had regard {o the matters set out in 5172 (1a to 1f) inctuding key decisions and matters thal are of strategic
importance to the Group, The Board of Dircetors, in line with their duties under 5172 of the Companies Act 2006,
acl in a way they consider, in good faith would be most likely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of
its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to a range of matters when making decisions for the long term.

We aim to pursue an open and transparent dialogue with our key stakeholdors in order to develop a clear
understanding of thelr needs, assess their perspectives and monisor thelr impacl on cur strategic objectives. As part
of the Board’s decision-making piocess, the Direciors cousider the potential impact of decisions on relevant
stakcholders whilst also having regard to 2 nwmber of hroader factors, including the impact of the Group’s
operations on the community and environment, responsible business practices and the ikely consequences of
decisions in the long term.,

Key stakeholders

Our key stakeholders are our service users (and their families), our workforee, our regulators and our investors and
tenders. Our commissioners, suppliers, and the communities we operate within are alse important stakehalder groups.
All key Board decisions take into account the impact on the relevant stakeholder groups, as follows:

Service users and their families

‘The Group provides specialist education, care and mental health services to a wide range of young people in the UK,
and to young pecple and adulls in the Middlc Fast. Those to whom services are provided, and their families, are
fundamental to every aspect of the Group’s operations and objectives. The Directors monitor the quality of service
provision to ensure the highest levels of care ave provided by a highly skilled and well equipped workforce. In sddition,
the Directors monitor the condition and appropriateness of the environment across the Group’s facilities to ensure the
physical environment in which services are provided are appropriately configured and maintained to the high standards
required for feading education and care provision. Feedback is received directly through our operational feams, who
Interact directly with service users and their families, and through multiple chennels of communication to senior
management to ensure issues can be raised and escalated ocutside of any specific care team or facility. The directors
are committed to gpen communication and transparency regarding all aspects of our service delivery, and ensuring
the Group’s operations deliver service provision to meet the specific needs of each Individual service user,

Warkforee

Qur workforce is key to providing safe and effective care to those whom we support. The Group employs a wide array
of specialist education and care prefessionals and engagement with those employees is paramount. The Directors
monitor the results of staff surveys, both regular and ad hoc, together with the Group’s system of employee forums
which oceur at local, regional and national level, meaning the Board is able to discuss human resourcing matters with
the interests of its workforce at heart. An example of actions taken in response to the feedback generated through these
channels is the articulation of tailored career pathways available to all Group employees. Annual safary reviews are
undertaken with reference to the importanee of colleague retention, changes in the National Living Wage, and
commercial factors. The Directors are committed to communicating the results of any wage reviews in a transparent
manner. Further information in respect of employees is set out on the Directors” report.

Investors

Our shareholders register consists of a majority shareholders, Standbyco 35 B.V. who are wholly owned by Waterland
Private Equity Investments B.V., and a number of minority sharchoiders which includes our largest single fandlord
{Medical Properties Trust) and various members of the Group’s management team. The Board engages regularly with
its major shareholders in order to, inter alia, develop long-term and shart-term business strategy, decide upon resource
allocation and consider key business risks. This includes regular reporting to both Waterland Private Equity and
Medical Properties Trust to ensure clear alignment and transparency over Group petformance and direction.

2
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) statement {con tinued)

Repulators

We are subject 1o a high degree of regulation, particularly in relation to the registration and ongoing inspection of our
services. The “business review” section above outline the key regulatory bodies, Results of inspections and more
general reports made by the regulators are discussed by the Board where appropriate, and ongoing dizlogue is
maintuined in order Lo respond with agility to emerging areas of focus, Sonie of our regulators also have responsibilify
for monitoring the ongoing financial viability of our business — senier management meet with the regulators
periodically fo engage in this process. Staff bonuses schemes at all levels of the organisation are at leasl partly linked
to the outcomes of Internal and external quality meirics,

Customers

The majority of our revenue is generated from the provision of services (o Loca!l Authoritics and other public bodies,
with a minority of revenues generated from private funding. In all cases is important that we evolve our service
provision to satisfy local demand {the needs of\which can change over time), ineet changing education and care criteria
and provide such services at the right time and place al an appropriate cost. Communication with cusfomers is ongoing
both locally and nationally, and the Board will consider the requirements of customers when allacaling resources for
new or amended service offerings, and agreeing a general approach to funding,

Suppliers

We aim to treat our suppliers fairly and work ir partnership with them as they provide essential goods and services to
the Group. It is our poliey to adhore to agreed credit terms. We maintain slrong supplier relationships across our supply
chains, led by the Group’s dedicated procurement function, Our key suppliers also includes our contracted workforce,
agency workers and related staffing agencies in the teaching and care professions, who play an essential rofe in
delivering quality services. For all supplies we engage in transparent and robust tendering and onboarding processes
to deitver fair and sustainable outcomes for suppliers and for the Group.

Communities

The Group operales natiotally and many of our facilities are embedded within the wider communily. 1t is therefore
importan( that the impact of our operations on the communities we operate in are taken into consideration. We are
also coppisant of the need to consider the overall environment when contracting with suppliets, or considering any
significant development projects, for example.

FPrincipal decisions

The Group defines prineipal decisions as those that are material, or of strategic importance to the Group, and also
those that have a significant impact on any of our key stakeholder groups, By way of examnple, a selection of principal
decisions taken by the Board during the ycar is set out below, highlighting the primary stakeholder groups affected
and some of the considerations taken into aceount in reaching those principal decisions,

Approval of the 2022/23 budget

The Board approved, prior to the start of the new financia! and academic year, the final budget for the twelve months
ending 3 1st Auguast 2023. The budget includes forecasts for each existing facility as well as central functions in order
lo atrive at an agpregated business plan, The key stakehoider groups affecled are our inveslors and our workforce,
Some of the key consideralions laken into necount included the balance of delivering ever greater quality of services,
improved staff relention aud growth of our services to service a greater number of people.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Secction 172(1}) statement (continued)

Facility refurbishments, expansions and service changes

As part of the 2022/23 budget, and looking ahcad into the medium term, the Board approved a number of significant
capilal expendire projects In order to refurbish andfor expand existing tacilities, retool locations 1o better reflect
demand for services and consider selective additional property acquisitions 1o expand certain service lines. The key
stakeholder groups affected are our investors, our commissioners and current and future service users. Soime of the
key considerations taken into account included the likely return on invesiment of such projects, the ability of a project
to meet the requirements of commissionets in providing a paiticular service, and our ability to safely and effectively
operate the service.

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters

The Group has an established and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corruption processes and controls in place. These are
supported by an internal audit function that has the mandate to perform announced and unannounced inspections and
investigation into any transactions occurring at a local, regional or group level.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringto
Director Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present their repor and the consolidated financial statements for the period from 28 July 2021 to 31
August 2022,

Incorporation

The Company was incorporated in England and Wales and commenced trading on 28 July 2021,

The consolidated financial siatements have been prepaved in accordance with International financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”} and the [FRS Inicrpretations Commiltee (“IFRS IC”) interpretations as adopled by the UK,

This report should be read in conjunction with the strategic report from page 4. The Group has chosen in accordance
with Section 414C (2) of the Companies Act 2006 Lo set out in the strategic report the following which the Dircetors
belicve to be of strategic importance:

Business revicw;

Future development and sirategy;
Principal risk and uncer{ainties; and
Financial risk management.

Directors of the Group

The Directors, who held office during the period, were as follows:
Oliver J Bevan {appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan Hallworth (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan I Jervis {(Appointed 31 August 2021)

Trevor M Torrington (Appoinled 31 August 2021)

Dividends

The Board has not recommended a dividend for the reporting period and has no current plan to do so.
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Aspris Holdce Iimited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 Augast 2022 (continued)

Statement of Divectors® Responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
aceordance with applicable law and regulalions.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have clected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs). Under company [aw the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or lass of the
company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

* mazke judpements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK adopted Internationzl Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been
followed, subject to any material deparfures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unfess it is inappropriate to presume thal the
company will continue in business.

The Directors are respensible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group’s and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and the company and enable them 1o ensure that the financial staterments comply with the Companies Aot
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the preveation and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Corparate governance

The Group has robust Governance and oversight of all aspects of the business:

s The Board meet at least six times per annum and are responsible for the overall management and direstion
of all aspects of the Group.

»*  The Executive Commiliee, which is Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes senior management
from across all aspects of the business, meets monthly and ave the primary executive team for the execution
and governance of the day o day running of the Group.

¢ Quality and Compliance committee, which is Chaired by the Direclor of Governance arnd includes senior
operational and funetion leads divectly related to education and care quality, meets monthly and js the senior
oversight of operational quality and risk,

¢  Performance and Commercial Review committee, which is Chaired joinily by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Finaneial Officer, meets monthly and is the senior oversight of the financial and commercial
performance of the business,

¢ Independent inspections, in line with the relevant legislation (regulation 44 of The Children’s Homes
(England) Regulations 2013)) the Group has a relling programme of independent inspections that report into
the Executive committee and above quality committee. These provide independent oversight over the quality
delivery of appropriate and compliant education and care services,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Goinyg coneern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s projected trading and assaciated liquidity requirements based on a range
of scenartos Lo ensure it has sufficient cash to meet its operational and financia! needs, Thesc forceasts arc underpinned
by detailed and embedded forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibilily over both the near term
and long-term liquidity requirements of the Group, to inform the Direclors decision making on all key financial
matters. The Directors consider both shorl {erm and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-
month daily liquidity forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and tonger term 3
year long range plans for the Group. Fach of these projects (he liquidily and cevenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period is
driven by the non-cash impeirment of goodwill (sce note 15) of £19.7m and exceptional costs of £7.8m, excluding
these items ihe Group made a loss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forccast to make an
operating profit doring the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its Jiabilities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future periods. At 31 August 2022
the Group had debi of £165.0m due to its external fenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans were due
to our shaveholders.

These considerations include the availability of committed, but undrawn, debt facilities that are available to the Group
to support general corporate and working capltal purposes. As at 31% August 2022 these available but undrawn
facilitics were £19.7m

The Directors assessment of going concern considers three primary areas:
1, Key lundamental business factors

The Group’s primary business, and niajority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows, is gencrated via the provision
aof services with specific characteristics that are key in considering dowmnside risk:

Provision of essential services

The group provides essential educalion and care services to meel the needs of a wide spectrum of young people in
our society. The demand for these services has increased over the fast decade and continues to do so across the
country, Cerlain service areas ate stated as 4 Governmental priority, hence funding is ringfenced for many of the
areas the Group provides.

Diversified payor base with low credit risk across the significant mgjority of the Croup

The majority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows are generated from customers that are publicly funded. This
Payor incledes over 180 Local Authority customers across England, Walss and Scotland. Tn the majority of case
each LA services and fees are provided on bespoke commercial terms and paid for separately by each customer,
significantly reducing the customer concentration tisk.

Established position as a (rusted provider

The Group is one of the leading providers of such services in the UK. The Group holds long standing relationships,
ofien held at both operational and management levels, with ils individual customers. The Group has consistently
delivered above national benchmarks for quality service provision and continues fo place, as a priority, the
provision of the highest guality eare to meet the needs of everyone it serves.

Strength, depth and experience of the Group's menagement feam and hnfrastructure

Over many years the Group has developed, and invested in, the strength and experience of its workforce and
management team. These factors enable the nationwide provision of our services to be managed within a rigorous
risk management framework, to respond lo risks as they arise.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going concern (continued)

Versaiility of skills to meet demand changes

The skifls embedded in owr swworkforce, and the nature of many of our facilities, are such that we can be
responsive to changes in the needs and demands of the people we care for, their funders and regalators. This
agility reduces the (iine taken to adapt the Group to best address its core markets.

Cash flow visibifity

The majority of young people in the UK that we care for remain within our services for more than a year, and the
payment value and timing for the related services are largely defined at the cutset of each placement. These
factors provide & base for good visibility over core trading performance and the working capital requirements of
the business, Thereby leading to good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medium term.

2. Assessment of the principal risks and Impact of a severe but plausible downside scenario

In assessing the potential impact of a range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the
likely impact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, us well as the compound
impact of risk factors in the broader macro cavironment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

In particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in order to assess the likely
tmpact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simultaneously, giving rise to a material
adverse impact on the Growp’s profitability and lguidity during the going concern period. Further details can be
found in note 3 of the financial statements

3. Consideration of the controliable action that the Directors can talte to mitigate a severe but plausible
downside secenario

In response to downside risks the Group has a range of actians, within its control, that it could deploy to mitigate
the impact. These include but are not limited to:

¢ Reduction in non-essential capital expenditure, including the capital expenditure on future growth projects

¢ Adapling or pausing of services where no demand exists to reduce or hall losses at a patticular facility and
better deploy resources

*  Reduction in certain areas of discretionary spend that would not have any short to medium term adverse
impact on the Group

In aggregate the inclusion of mitigalion aclions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenant headroom
further, versus the unmitigated scenario

Having considered all of the above factors the Directors have concluded there Is no material uncertainty on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern for the period from the date of the approval of these financial
statements to 31 August 2024.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Engagement with employecs

The Directors recognise (hat the continued position of the Group in the specialist education, care and behavioural care
industry depends on the quality and motivation of its employees. Well trained, engaged and quality employees are
crucial for the Group to ensure that service users receive the best quality care. The key quality performance indicators
the Group uses o measure engagement and training ave: the employee opinion survey, employee sickness levels and
compliance with the Group c-Icarning programme. The Group has low levels of sickness and high levels of compliance
with training progranunes, Whilst moniloring these performance indicators, the Group continues fo review its
remauneration syslem {0 ensure it is falr, trapsparent, flexible and provides individual recognition. Employees have a
personal development plan that is nonifored, assessed and modified during the annual appraisal process.

The Group recognises that good and effective employce communications ave particutarly important to retaining and
motivating employees, and throughout the business it is the Directors® policy to promote the vnderstanding by all
employees of the Group’s business aims, purpose, performance and individual opportunities for personal and career
development. This is achfeved through iniernal publications, presentations on peiformance and a variety of ofher
approaches appropriate for a particular jocation, Employees are consulted on Issues through our Active Collcaguc
Engagement (‘ACE') forums. In all these aveas, the Group continues to further invest in resource and IT solutions in
order to deliver a positive expetlence for all our colleagues.

The Directors believe that it is important to recruil and retain capable and caring staff repardless of their gender,
marital status, racc or religion. It is the Group’s policy to give full and fair consideration to applications for
emplayment from people who are disabled, to continue wherever possible the employment of and o arrange
appropriate training for, employees who become disabled and to provide equal opporfunities for the career
development, training and promotion of disabled employces.

Charitable Donations

During the period the Group made charitable donation of £50,000. Tndividual donations were as {ollows:

Charity _ o £

UNICEF ~ Ukraine appeal 50,000




Aspris Holdeo Timited

Dircctors® Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined encrgy and carbon reporting

In April 2019, the Department for Business, Energy and Industrinl Strategy intreduced a new reporting regulation
entitled the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework (“SECR”), replacing various other reporling
requirements. Organisations subject to SECR are required to include information relating to their energy usage and

carbon emissions,

The energy vsed and emissions the perfod ended 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Emission type Total Calculated
Volume Emissions

{lkwhy (Tonnes of

, .C0%)

Scope [ {direct) 13,814,587 2,954.9
Scope 2 (indirect) 5,020,739 970.9
Scope 3 (indireot) 26,198 26.8
Total 138,862,124 3,952.6

Scope [ BEmissions {dircet) ate Emissions from aclivitics owned or controlled by the Group, that release emissions
into the atmosphere, scope | emissions for Aspris Group include amengst ather, combustion in owned boilers and

vehicles.

Scope 1 Emissions {direct) for the period are as follows:

Energy type Definifion Total Calceulated

Volume ¥missions

(ixWh) (Tounes of

CO%)

(ias Emissions frem combustion of gas 6,407,987 1,169.7

Other Fucls Emissions from combustion ol fuels for stationary 7,153,714 1,532.3
machinery and engines

Transport Emissions from combustion of fuels for transport 252,886 252.9

putposes
Tatal 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 Emissions (indirect) are emissions released into the atmosphere associated with the Groups consumption of
purchased electricity, heat, and cooling. These are indirect emissions that are a consequence of the Group’s

activities, but which occur at sources that the Group doees not own or control.
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Asprtis Holdeo Timited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continned)

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continued)

Scope 2 Emissions (indireet) for the period are as follows:

Energy type Definition Total Caleulated
Vulume Emissions
(kW) (Tonnes af

_ COY)
Electricity Limissions from purchased electrieity 5,020,739 970.9
Total 5,020,739 970.9

Scope 3 Emissions {indircet) arc emissions that are a consequence of the actions of the Group, which cecur at source
which are not classified as scope 2 emissions. Examples of Scope 3 emissions are business travel by means not

owned or controlled by the Group.

Scope 3 Emissions (indirect) for the period are as follows:

Encrgy type Definition Tofal Calculated
Yolume Emissions
(IlK'Wh) (Tonnes of
] CO%)
Employee-owned cars  Emissions from business travel in rental cars or 26,798 26,8
employee-owned vehicles where the company is
responsible for purchasing fue] (mandatory)
Total 26,798 26.8
Inteatsity Ratio
The Group monitats an Intensity vatio in the form of a comparison of emissions to turnover:
Infensily measure Turnover Intensity
£m Ratlo?
i'onnes CO%e per (otal £m turnover 179.2 22.06
Total 1792 22.06
" ICO efTurmaver £m

Quantification and reporting methodology

The Group kas taken guidance from the UK Governmient Environmental Reporting Guidelines (March 2018}, the
GHG Reporting Protocof - Corporate Standard, and from the UK Government GHG Conversion Faciors for
Company Reporting document for calculating carbon emissions, nergy usage information (gas and clectricity) has
been obtained directly from our energy suppliers and half-hourly (HH) data, where applicable, for the IHH supplies.
For supplies where there were not complete periods energy usage available, flat profile estimation techniques were
used to complete the periods consumption. Transport mileage data was oblained from expense claims submitied by
the Group’s cars and grey fleet. CO% emissions were calculated using the appropriate emission faclors 2022 from

the UK Geovernment GHG conversion information.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Direetors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined encrgy and carbon reporting {confinued)

Energy efficient action

In the past year the Group has undertaken various energy efficiency works across the cstate, including the upgrading
of AC systems, boilers and insulation, The Group have, ai a mumber of sites, commenced conversion of Qil heating
systems to more efficient LPG solutions, These focussed works arg ongoing alongside general refurbishments
undertaken including LED lighting and general cfficiencies,

The Group will continue our cfforts through participation in Phase 3 of BSOS (Energy Saving Opporlunities Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint through continued struclured investment in energy

efficiency programmes.
Ethical trading

The Group endeavours to purchase goods and services with the least environmental impact. Qur efforts for waste
diversion from landfill, recycling, coliection, and segregation have meant that the Group have diverted 99% of trade
waste away from landlill. Aspris also recycled 35% of all trade waste generaled, and we remain committed to
increasing this percentage of recycling year on year, with a target of 50% hy the end of 2023.

We continue to be supported in our efforts through the cellection of recyclable materials, the collection and
conversion of our waste cooking oil to diesel, and other initiatives.

Disclosure of information to the audifor

Each Director has iaken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information. The Dircctors
cotifirm that these is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringthn
Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdco Limited

INDLEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO TiE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Opiuion on the financial statements
In our opinjon:

¢ the financial slalements give a lrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Clamipany’s
alfairs as at 31 Auygust 2022 and of the Group’s toss for the period then ended;

¢ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK. adopled international
accounting standards;

»  the Parent Company financial stalements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

¢ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Aspris Holdeo Limited (“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group™) {or the period ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated
Statenment of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial staterments, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, The financial reporting framework thal has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting standards, and as regavds the Parent Company f{inancial statements, as applicd in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Basts for opinion

We canducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable lay.,
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our reporf, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tindependence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the cthical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Eihical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibifities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have conctuded that the Directors’ use of the going concetn basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainlies relating to events or
condilions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised

for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respeot 1o going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this repost.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited
INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)
Other infprmation
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
lhe Annual Report, other then the finaneial statetnents and our auditor’s reporl thereon. Our apinion on the finansial
statements docs not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conelusion thereon.
Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated, If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, e are
required to delermine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the finsnciat statements themseives. If,

based on the work we have performed, we cenclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are requited to report that facl.

We have nothiag to repert in (his regard.
Other Companties Act 2006 reporting
Tn our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

¢ the information giver in the Strategic reporl and the Directors® repori for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the Stratepic report and the Directors” report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and ils environment abtained
in the course of the audit, we have net identified material misstaternents in the Strategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

s adequate accounting recards have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; o

s the Parent Company financial séatements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retuens; or

»  certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of Directors
As explained more fully In the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal

control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are frec from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

1n preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company’s
ability fo continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to
rense operatinns, or have no realistic alteenative bt o dn so,

Auditor’s respousibilities for the andit of the finaucial statements

Our objectives are to ablain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audilor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee that an audit conducied in accordance with
[SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstalements can arise from fruud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including frand

Iiregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance wilh laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with owr responsibilities, oullired above, o detect material misstatements in respect of hregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud is detailed below:

We have identified and assessed the potential risks related to irregularities, including fraud, by considering the
following:

o the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group®s remuneration policies;

o enquiries of management regarding; compliance with laws and regulations; the detection and
response (o the risk of frand and any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud; and the
conlrols in place to mitigate risks rclated to fraud or non-comptiance with faws and regulations.

o obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework in which the Group operates,
including employment Jaw, and Health and Safety requirements,

o performing procedures lo verify the exislence of revenues, and consider the risks around the
fraudulent recognition of amounts,

We have responded 1o risks identified by performing procedures including the following:
o enquiry of management concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

o reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with relovant laws and regulations;

o perfonuing analylical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relalionships which may
indicate risks of misstatement due to fraud; and

o reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance witl: laws and regulations.

We have also considered the risk of {iaud through management override of controls by:

o sample lesling the appropriateness of joumal entrics and other adjustments; assessing whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating
the business rationale of any significant transactions that arc unusual or cutside Lthe nermal course
of business;
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Aspris Holdeo T.imited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REFORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO ILIMITED
(CONTINUED)

o discussing among the engagement leam how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements
and any potential indicalors of fraud. As part of this discussion, we considered potential for fraud
in revenue recognition, specifically in relation to revenue existence, as well as the potential for
management overtide of controls specifically in relation to the posting of journal adjustments and
the inappropriate use of estimates.

o in addressing the risk for frand in revenue recognition, lesting the appropriateness of the revenue
recagnition policies and the application of these policies and performing specific progedures over
the existence and cut-off of revenue; and

o discussing with management and those charged wilh gavernance whether they ate aware of any
frauds, or non-compliance with laws and regulations, during the periad.

Our audit procedures were designed 1o respend to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from crror, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, mistepresentations or
through collusion, There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial staternents, the less
likely we are to become aware of if.

A further description of our respensibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s websile at:
hitpss/finyw. firc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Parl 16 of
the Companies Act 2006, Our audit wark has been underiaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members these matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibitity fo anyone other than the Purent Company and the
Parent Compuny's members as a bedy, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions sve have formed,

PocuSigned by:

Paul ‘thmqow

E10CCOCF40A84CC .

Paul Etherington BSc FCA CF (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Reading, UK

22 March 2023

BDO LLP is a limited liability parinership registered in England and Wales (with registersd number OC305127).
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Coensolidated Income statement for the period ended 31 Angust 2022

Note 2022
£
Revenue 4 179.2
Operating costs (156.1)
Exceptional items 10 {7.8)
Impairment loss 15 (19.7)
Other losses 8 (0.3)
Operating loss W_ G
Net {inance costs 9 (22.7)
L.uss before taxation ;W
Income tax 11 0.3
Loss attribufable to the owners of the Gronp (27.1)

27

The notes on pages 34 te 73 form an integral part of these financial slalements.




Aspris IHoldeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period to

31 August 2022
2022
£m
Loss for the period {27.1)
_Total comprehensive income for the period (27.1)
28

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Aspris Holdco Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment i2 158.1
Right of use asscts 3 156.4
Tntangible assets 14 143.4
457.9
Current assets
Trade and ather receivables 18
Cash and cash equivalent 19 181
41.6
Fotal assets 500.5
Current liabilities
Lease labilities 13 (5.1
Trade and other payables 24 {21.5)
Income tax liability (0.9)
Deferred income 20 . (28.8)
(56.3}
Net current liabilitles (13.7)
Non-current lHabilitics
Leasc liabilities 13 (155.4)
Loans and borrowings 22 (159.6)
Provisions 23 (1.0)
Deferred tax ligbilities 26 {36.2)
(352.2)
Net assets 92,0
Share capitai 21 84.6
34.5

Share premium
Accumulated losses (27.1)

‘Total equity 92.0

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

revor M Torringfo
Director

21 March 2023
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The notes on pages 34 1o 73 form an integeal part of these financial statements.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended

August 2022

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial staiements.

Share capital Share Retained  Total equity
Premium Earnings
1.pss for the period (27.1) 7.1
Total comprehensive inconte 27.1) 27.1}
New share capital subscribed 84.6 345 - 119.1
__AL&I August 2022 84.6 34.5 (27.1) 92.0
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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assots
Non-rirrent assets
Investients in subsidiaries 16 119.1
Current asseis
Trade and other receivables 18 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 19 . 0.7
N CE
Tutal assels 1200
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 0.9}
Net curvent assets/{liabilities) -
Net assets lﬁ.ul——
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premium 34.5
Total equily 119.%

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from

presenting its own profit and loss account. The Company’s loss for the year was £15,000.

Approved by the Beard and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Tomi
Director Director

21 March 2023

3l
The notes on pages 34 10 73 form an integral part of these financial slatements.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended August 2022

Share capital Share Retained Total equity
Premium Larnings
L,o0ss for the period L -
Total comprehensive inconte - -
New share capital subseribed o 84.6 34.5 - 119.]
At 31 Aupgust 2022 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
32

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Cash flows from operating activities
Luoss for the period 27.1)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 6 13.7
Depreciation on tight of use assets 6 8.5
impairment of goodwil 15 19.7
Loss on disposal of property piant and equipment 8 0.3
Finatice income 9 (0.1)
Finance costs 9 22.8
Share of [oss of equity accounted investees .5
Income tax 11 (0.3}
38.0
Working capifal adjustments
Increase in irade and other receivables (6.4)
Increase in trade and other payables 4.1
Inerease in provisions 0.2
Decrease in deferred income 0.1
Cash generated from eoporations 358
fricome taxes paid (1.6}
Net cash flow from aperating activitics . 34.2
Cash flows firom investing activities
Interest received 9 0.1
Acquisitions of property plant and cquipment 12 (12.1)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and eguipment 1.0
Advances of loans to jeint ventures 16 (1.1)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - net of cash acquired 17 {1237
(135.8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid {11.3)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 119.1
Proceeds from external borrowing draw downs 158.6
Repayment of exlernal borrowing 41.3)
Repayment of {oans advanced from (ormer parent 17 {95.1)
Principal paid on lease liabilities 13 (4.8)
Interest paid on lease liabilities 13 (10.5)
1197
Net increase in, nnd closing cash and cash equivalents 19 18.1
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

1.  General information

The company is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated in IIngland and Wales and domiciled in
United Kingdom, registration number 13534635, Aspris Holdco Limited Group includes the Aspris Children’s
Services Abu Dhabi Branch.

‘Fhese financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 17 March 2023
2, Accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and its interpretations adopted by the UK {"UK adopted IFRSs™).

Summary of significant accoumting policies and key estimates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied, unlesg otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation

The consalidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with UK, adopted international accounting
standards in conformity svitk the requircments of the companies act 2006 as applicable to companies using IFRS.
The Company has elccted to prepare its parenl Company financial statements in accordance with UK generally
aceepted accounting principles (K GAAP), including FRS 101

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost accounting rules.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2606 and
elected not to prescnt iis own Statement of Comprehensive Income in these financial slalements,

Going concern

The Board reviews forccasts of the Group’s liquidity requircments based on a range of scenarios to cnsure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational and financial needs. These forecasts arc underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term and long-term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors® decision making on ail key financial matters. The Directors
consider both short ferm and jong-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and perfodic inlra year reforccasting processes, and longer term 3 year Jong range plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the liguidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the peried ended 31 August 2022, this foss in the current period
reflecis the non-cash impairment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m und exceptional of £7.8m, excluding these
items the group made a loss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an operating
profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its liabilities snd surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and suppert the business in future petiods, At 31 August
2022 the Group had debt of £165.0m due to its exteinal lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans
were due to our shareholders.

As part of their considerations the Directors review a range of different scenatios, including a sevete but plausible
downside scenario to assess the impact on both the liquidity and covenant headroom of the Group, see note 3.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Basis of censolidation

The Group financial stalements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings
drawn up o 31 August 2022,

A subsidiary is an entily controlled by the Company. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity 5o as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year arc inciuded in (he incame statement from the
cffective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriatc. Where necessary, adjusiments are
made to the financial statemeants of subsidiaries Lo bring thelr accounting policies info line with those used by the
Group.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group. The cos! of a business combination is measured as the fair valne of the assets given,
equily instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed al the date of exchange, plus costs directly atiributable
lo the business combination, Identifiable assets acquired and {iabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initfafly at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair valuc of the identifiable assets, liabillties and
contingent liabilities recognised is recorded as goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related patties, are eliminated in full.

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financia! stalements.

Changes in accounting policy
The foilowing amendments are effective for the period beginning 28 July 2021;
+  Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Norie of the standards, interpretations and amendments effective for the first time from 28 July 2021 have had a
material effect on the financial statements,

The following new standards, interpretalions and amendments are not yet effect:

*  Amendment 1o IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Currest or Non-current

« Amendments to [FRS 3 “Definition of 2 business”

» 1AS 16: PPE: Proceeds before intended use

v [AS 37: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contrac!

*  Annual improvement cycle to IFRS (2018-2020 Cycle)
o IFRS I: Subsidiary as a first time adopter
o IFRS8 9: fees in the *10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial {iabilitics
o IFRS 16: Lease incentives amended example

« [AS 8 Definition of accounting estimates

+ [AS 1: Disclosure initiative —accounting policies

s  Amendments 1o IAS 12 “Deferred tax relaling to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction”

Nome of the standards, interpretations and amendments which are effective for perjods beginning after 28 July 2021
and which have not been adopted early, ave expected to have & material effect on the financial statements.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Revenue Recognition

Recognition
Revenue is recogniscd based upon the number of people per day to which we have provided a service, These volume

melrics arc recerded and combined with the applicable fee rate per person per service, to derive the total revenue to
be recognised. There is limited judgemental input this process

Revenue is recogniscd as performance obligations are satisfied as control of services is transferred {o the customer,
The Group has determined that most of its performance obligations are satisfied over time as the client
simultaneously received and consumes the benefils provided by the Group as the education or care services are
rendered. In the circumstances, revenue is recognised at the amount which the Group has the right to inveice, where
that amount corvesponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s performance completed to date.

The principtes in IFRS arc applied to revenue recognition eriteria using the following § step model:

1. Identify the contracts with the customer
2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price
4, Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

Fee arrangements

Below ave details of fee arrangements and how these are measured and recognised, for revenue from the provision of
services; '

Aspris delivers special education and care services {o ils service users in line with contraciual agreements, which
clearly state the nafurc of the services to be provided over what time period. The main performance obligations in
contracts consist of delivery of services to service users, For all contracts the stage of completion and delivery of
perforniance obligations are measured at the balance sheet date by reference to services delivered to service users at

that date.

Transaction price

To calculate the transaction price of contracts rates are applied daily or by specific service provided to service uscrs
as detailed in contractual agreements,

Payntent terms

Payment tetms range from payment in advance of services delivered o within a range of specified days of receipt of
service or invoice, dependant on the specific circumstances and needs of the service users.

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises cuerent tax, Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that 2 change
attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income Is also recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
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Aspris Holdeo J.imited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eguipment is stated in the statement of financial position al cost, less any subsequent
accumtlated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment Iosses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes divectly attributable increnienial costs incurred in their
acquisition and instatlation,

Depreciatiun

Depreciation is charged so as lo write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset class - Years depreciated over

Frechold buildings 50 years

Leasehold buildings The lease term

Fixtures and fittings 310 16 years

Motor vehicles The short of the lease term or 4 years .

Intangible asscts

Goodwill atising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in he net fair value of the idenlifiable assets, liabilitics and contingent liabilities of the entity recognised al
the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequensly measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired entity and revalued to the
closing rate at ¢ach reporting period date.

Goodwill is not subjecl to amertisation but is tested for impairment on at least an annual basis. The impairment test
compares the recoverable value of a cash generating unit (‘CGU”), the value in use of that CGU and the carrying
value of the intangible asset in accordance with IAS36. This assessment factors in the latest developments within
each CGU, including amongst other factors, current frading, capacity and staffing constraints ¢o assess an estimation
of the future cashflows and the determination of a discount rate in order (o caleulate the present value of thosc cash

flows.

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition Js recognised directly in the income statement. On disposal of a
subsidiary or a jointly contralled entity, the attributeble amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss recognised in the income statement on disposal.

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost.

‘Frademarks, licences (including software) and customer-related intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
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Aspris Holdco 1.imited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Amortisation

Amortisation is provided on intangible assels so as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value, over their
eaputod dselul counomie Ll as fulluws:

Asset elass Years amortised over
Customet contracts 010 17 years

The amortisation periods are based on expected custorner churn rates and, where relevant, the length of fixed-term
customer confracis

Valuation of invesiments

Investments in subsidiaries held by the company are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment in the
company’s statement of financial position.

Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liguid investments
that are readily converiible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue,
Trade receivables

Trade receivables arc amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business, If
collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normat operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets, If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They arc subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impalrment. A provision for the impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been asquired in the ordinary course of
business from seppliers. Accounts payable arc classified as current Habilities If payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current Habilitics,

Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes (o the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Aungust 2022
(continued)

Borrowings

All borrowings are initiaily recorded at the fair value which is often the smount received, net of transaction costs.
Borrowings are subsequently carried & amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, nel of transaction
costs, and the amount due ot redemption being recognised as a charge lo the income statement over the period of the
relevant borrowing.

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities untess the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences belween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
conselidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferved tax assets are
generatly recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available sgainst which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferved tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profil.
In addition, defetred tax Liahilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assels arising from deductible temporary differences associaled with such investments and interests are only
recogniscd to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits apzainst which te utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expecled o reverse in the forcseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part ol the asset to be
recovered,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets ave measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is setiled or the asset realised, based on tax rales {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the

manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle lhe cartying amount of ifs
assefs and liabilities,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional itemns

Ttems that are both material and non- revccurring and whose significance is sufficient to warrant separate disclosute
and identification within the consclidated financial information ave referred to as exceptional items. Items that may
give rise to classification as exceptional inciude but are note timited to, significant and material reorganisation and
restructuring programmes, re-financing and acquisition costs. Further details of exceptional ilems can be found in
note 10,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (lega! or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the vbligation.

Provisions are measured at the Direetors® best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date and are discounted 1o present value where the effect is material.

Leases
Definition

A lease Is a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an assct or a physically distinet pait of an
asset (“the underlying asset™) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Further, the contract imust convey
the right {o the Group to control the asset or a physically distinct portion thereaf. A contract is deemed to convey the
right io confral the underlying asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to:

*  Obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the underlying asset, and;
s Direct the use of the underlying asset (e.g. direct how and for what purpose the asset is used}

Tiitial recagnition and measurement

The Group initizlly recopnises a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset for
the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease paynients to be made over the lease term, with the
discount rate determined by reference fo the rate inherent in the lease unless {as is lypically the case} this is nat
readily determinable, in which case the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the leese is used.
The lease payments include fixed payments, purchase options at exercisc price (where payment is reasonably
certain}, expected amount of residual value guarantees, termination option penalties {where payment is considered
reasonably certain) and vaviable lease puyments that depend on an index or rate. [n such cases, the initial
measurement of the [ease Hability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease
incentives received, the Group’s initial direct costs {e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and
dismantling costs.

Subsequent measurement

After the cammencement dale, the Greup measures the lease liability by:

(a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

{b) Reducing the canying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

{(c) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in
substance fixed lease payments or on the occurrence of other specific cvents.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces & constant perjodic rate
of interesl on the remaining balance of the [ease liabilily. Inferest charges arc presented separately as non-operafing
costs, included in finance cost, in the income statement, unless the costs are included in the carrying amouwnt of
another asset applying other appiicable standards.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability, are included in operating expenses in
the peried in which the event or condition that friggers them arises,

The related right-of-use asset is accounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 and depreciated and charged in
accordance with the depreciation requirements of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in the
accounting policy for Property, plent and equipment, Adjustments are made to the carrying value of the right of use
asset where the lease liability is re-measured in accordance wilh the above, Right of use assets are tested for
impairtment in accordance with 1AS 36 Impairment of assels as disclosed in the accounting policy in impairment.

Lease modifications

If = lease is modified, the modified conlract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains a lease. If a lease
continues 1o exist, the lease modification will result in cither & separate leasc or a change in the accounting for the
existing lease.

The modification is accounted for as a separatc lease if both:

{a) The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right lo use one or inore underlying asseis; and
(b) The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-atone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments {o thai stand-alone prics to rellect the circumstances of the particular
contraci.

If both of thesc conditions are net, the lease modification results in two separate leases, the unmodified original
lease and a separate lease. The Group then accouats for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases,

If either of the conditions are not met, the modified lease is not accounted for as a separate lease and the
consideration is allocated to the contract and the lease liability is re-measured using the lease term of the modified
lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective datc of the modification.

For a modification that fully or pertially decreases the scope of the leass (e.g, reduces the square footage of leased
space), IFRS 16 requires a essee 1o decrease the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect partial or full
termination of the lease. Any difference between those adjustments is recognised in profit or loss at the effective
date of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessee to
recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the corresponding right-of-use
asset without affecting profit or loss,

Short term and {ow value leases

The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, not (o recognise lease assets and
lease liabilities for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (i.e. short-term leases).

The Group has made an accounting policy clection on a lease-by-lease basis, not to recognise lease assets an eases
for which the underiying assel is of low value.

Lease payments on short term and low value leases are accounted for on a straight line buses over the term of the
lease or other syslematic basis if considered more appropriale. Short tern and low value lease payments are included
in operaling expenses in the income statement.

41




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shaves are classiffed as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the eash or other
rescurces received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equily instruments. If payment is deferred and
the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions arc paid into a separate entily and has
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficicat assets to pay all
cmployees the benefits relating to employee service In the current and prior periods.

Financial instruments
Initial recopnition

Financial assetz and financial liabilitizs comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, excluding property, plant and equipment, inlangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax liabilities.

‘The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Financial liabilities are initiaily recognised at fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and transaction costs that are direcily attributable o
the financial liability.

Purchases or sales of a financial assets under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned are defined as a regular way
purchase or sale. All regular way purchases and sales of financizal assets and financial liabilities classified as fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) arc recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which ihe Group commits to
purchase or sell the financial assets or financial liabilities. All regular way purchases and sales of other financial
assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the settlement date, i.e, the date on which the asset or liability is
received from or delivered to the counterparty. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent to initiel messurement, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at either amortised cost or
fair value.
Classification and measurement

Financial instruments are clagsified at inception inte one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequent measurement methodology: -

Financial assets are classified into one of the following categories:-
+ financial assets at amorfised cost;
« financial assets at fair value lthrough the profit or loss (FYTPL); or
Finaneial liabilities ave classified into one of the following two categories: -
+ financial liabilities at amortised cost; or
+ financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL).
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Financial instroments {confinued)

The classification and the basis for measurement ave subject to the Group’s business model for managing the
financial gssets and the contractual cash 1low characteristics ot the linancial asscts, as detailed below:-

Financial assefs af amoriised cost

A financial assef {s measured af amortised cost i1 it meets both of the following conditions and {s not designated as at
FVTPL:

+  the assets are held within a busincss model whose objective is 1o hold assets in order to collect conlractual
cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms of the financial assots give rise on specified dates to cash flosvs that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

If either of the sbove two criteria is not met, the financial assets are classified and measured at fair value through the
profit or loss (FVTPL).

If a financial assel meets the amortised cost eriteria, the Group may choose to designate the financial asset at
FVTPL.. Such an election is irrevocable and applicable only if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency.

Financial assels af fair valwe through the profit ar loss (FVTPL)
Financial asscls not otherwise classified above are classified and measured as FVTPL.

Financiaf liabilities at amorfised cost
All financial liabilities, other than those classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, ave measured at amorlised cost
using the effective intevest rate method.

Financlal liabilities at fair value through the profir or loss
Financial liabilitics not measured at amortised cost are classified and measured at FVTPL. This classification includes
derivative liabilities.

Derecognition

Financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when;

s the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

s jttransfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaetion in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are transferred; or

» the Group neither (ransfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial assel, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised as a gain or loss in the profit or foss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in QCI in respect of equity investraent securities designated as FYTOCI is
not recognised in profit or [oss on derecognition of such securitics. Any interest in transferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes (o the Financial Statemenis for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Finanecial instruments (continued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of {financial position, but
refains cither all or substantially all of risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them, In such cases,
the transferred assets are not derecogrised.

When the Group derccognises transferred financial assets in their entirefy, but has continuing invelvement in them
then the entity should disclose for each type of continuing involvement at the reporting date:

{(a) The carrying amount of the assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the entity’s stateinent of
financia! position and represent the entity’s continuing involvement in the derecognised financial
assets, and the {ine items in which those assets and liabilities are recognised.

(b) The fair value of the assels and liabilities that represent the entity’s continuing involvement in the
derecognised financial assets;

{c} The amount that best represents the entity®s maximum exposure to loss from its continuing
involvement in the derecognised financial assets, and how the maximum cxposure to loss is
determined

(d) The undiscounted cash oulflows that would or may be required to repurchese the derecognised

{inancial assets or other amounis payable to the transferec for the transferred assets

Financial liabilities
The Group derecogniscs a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

Impairment of financial assets
AMeasurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL} on financial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL, namely trade and cther receivables.

Provisions for eredit-fmpairment are recognised in the statement of income and are reflected in accurnulated
provision balances against each refevant financial instruments balance,

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired include the following;

s Significant financial difficulties of the borrower or issuer;

® A breach of contract such as default or past due event;

»  The restructuring of the loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

s It is becoming probabie that the botrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

+ There is other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Group, or economie conditions that correlate with defaults in the Group,

For trade receivables, ithe Group applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Trade veceivables are not subject to material or significant credit losses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant
given that over 90% of revenuc is derived from publicly funded entilies,
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments - - Risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and liguidily risks which arise in the nonmal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed Lo are noted below, for further detail on these
financial risks please see note 27.

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as fallows:

s Trade receivables
¢ Cash deposits
¢ Senior and revolving credil facilities containing a variable element linked 1o Sterling Overnight Index

Average
Capital Management
The Group's objective when managing its capital is to ensuve that entities in the Group will be able to continuc as a

going concern whilst maximising returns for stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity plense see note
27 for the Group’s capital structure.
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3. Critical accennting judpements and key sources of estimation

The preparation of the financial stalements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain financial assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The usc of estimates and assumptions is principally limited to the determination of provisions for impairment snd
the valuation of financial insiruments as explained in more deiail below:
Provisions for impairment

in determining impaitment of financia! assets, judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows as well as an assessment of whether the credit risk on the financial asset has incressed gignificantly
since inilial recognition and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of BCL,

Fair vatuye of financlal assets and liabitities

Where the fair value of financial assels end liabilities cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models is
derived from cbservable markels where available, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
determining assumptions used in the models. Changes in assumptions used in the models could affeet the reporied
fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

Going Concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group®s liquidity requircments based on a range of scenarios to cnsure it has
sufficient cash to meel operational and financial necds. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibilily over both the near term and long term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors decision making on all key financial matters. The Directors
consider both short terme and long term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three month daily Hquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Bach of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

There are necessary estimates and judgements in the directors’ assessment of going concern these are considered in
detail in the strategic report.

In assessing the potential impact of & range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the likely
impact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound impact of
risk factors in the broader macro envircnment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

In particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario Is considered by the Directors in order 10 a8sess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simultaneously, giving rise to a material adverse
impact on the Group's profitability and liquidity during the going concern periad, Specifically, the severe but
plausible downside scenario assumes:

e Reduction ih occupancy levels from base forecasts of an aggregate of approximately 2% for the going
concern petiod.

+  Costinflation:

o Wage inflation — additional site-wide wage inflation of 1.0% beyond the Group’s planaed wage
increases (which aiready reflect announced National Living Wage, Teacher's Pay Scale, and
other intermnal increases)

o Non-Wage inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflation assumed beyond the Group’s base case.
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Criticat accounting judgements and key sources of estimation (continued)

+ Fee Inflation - over and above the cost impacts the scenario considers a material shorifall in the
proportion of fee increases that can be successfully achieved.

* Inlerest rate increases —asswmes a marked and sustained increase in interest rates, ant therefore the cash
flows required to service the Group’s debt. The scenario factors in Bank of England Base rates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and holding at this level for the remaining going concern pevicd.

We do not consider that COVIIT-19 will have a material impact on the cashflows of the Group in the going concern
period.

The revenue and cost impact of such & scenario would have a meajor negative impact on the Group’s profitability for
the going concern period. With operating profit being adversely impacted by approximately 30% in the period.
Furthermore, in adopfing a prudent approach, the Directors have considered this scenario before relevant mitigating
actions that the business could implement to limit the adverse impact, Before the inclusion of such mitigations the
Group continucs {o forecast sufficient liquidity and linancial covenant headreom.

Business Combinations

The Group undertook three business combinations during the period (note 17). In accordance with TFRS, the
purchase method of accounting has been used. The Directors determine and allocate the purchase price of acquired
businesses at the date of the business combinatiorn, The purchase method tequires significant estimates and
judgments.

While Tircctors use their best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to
accurately value assels acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, estimates and assumptions arc
inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. Examples of critical estimates in valuing cerlain assets we have
acquired include;

»  future expected cashilows arising from assets and liabilities,
e the fair value of intangible and fangible assets, and
+  discount rates.

Uscful Economic life of intangible assets

The Directors have determined the useful economic life of certain intangible assets acquired as part of business
combination. The emortisation periods are based on expected customer chura rates and, where relevant, the length of
fixed-term customer conleacts,

Right of use assels and lisbilities

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions in which il operates, recognised in accordance with
IFRS16 (note 13).

In cafculating the asset/Hability attached to several of the lease agreements the Group has required use of an
Incremental Borrowing Rate (“IBR”). The IBR has considered the risk-free rate attributable 1o the currency, [ocation
and lease term of each property, adjusted to reflect the interest rates the Group would be able to achieve based upon
its existing financing arrangements.
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Critieal accounting judgenients and key sources of estimation (continued)

The Dijeclors have applied judgement to determine the lease term for contracts that include a renewal or break
option. Tixtension options and break clauses are included in a number of the Group’s lease agreements to maximise
the flexibility in managing operattonal assets. In determining the lcase term, the Directors have considered all facts,
circumstances and the exercise dates of such clauses. Extension options and break clauses are only reflecied in the
icase term il there is reasonably cerfainty they will be exercised.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible fixed assets

The Directors must assess whether intangible assets have beenr impalred during the period, Factors laken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the econcemic viability and expected future financial performance
of the asset and whese it is a component of a larger cash generating unit, the viability, expected future performance
of that unit using a discounted cashflow model s at the period end and the assessed fair vaiue of each cash
generating unit. The key eslimates und assumptions that feature in the impairment test is the sefection of pre-tax
discount rafe relative to the specific risks of the cash-generating unil and the preparation of pre-tax cash flows using
director approved forecasts with growth rates that represent the Iivectors® best estimates, (note 15)
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4.  Revenue

The analysis of the Group’s revenue for the period is as follows:

2022
£m
Turnover 178.6
Other revenue 0.6
B 179.2
The analysis of Lhe revenue by geographic region is as follows:
2022
£m
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle East based divisions 2.7
1792
5. Stalf costs
The aggregate payroll costs {Including directars® remuneration) were as foilows:
2022
£m
Wages and salarigs 91.4
Social security costs 8.0
Pension costs, defined contribution scheme 4.5
103.9

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including the Directors) during the period, analysed by

category was as follows:

Site und operational
Administration and support

2022
No.
2,987
174
3,161
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6. Operating loss

Arrived at after charging/(crediting)
2022
£m
Depreciation cxpense 8.7
Depreciation on right of use assefs 8.5
Amortisation expense 5.0
_Expense on short term lcases —. 0.9

7.  Auditors® remuneration

Audit fees of £0.5m were incurred by the Group during the perjod, alt fees retate 10 the audit of the Group. There
were no fees incurred related to non-audit services.

8. Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains or losses for the peried are as follows;

2022
£m
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment o 0.3
9. Finance income aid costs
2022
£m
Finance income
Intercst on bank deposits 01
01
Finance costs
Interest on external borrowings 12,0
Interest on lease liabiiities 10.8
228
Net finance costs 22,7
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10. Exceptional items

2022

£m

Acquisition costs related to business combinations 5.8
Aspris formation and reorganisation costs 1.3
Other {ransaction costs and charitable donations 0.7
7.8

Acyuisition costs on business combinations relate to the acquisition of Aspris Children's Services Limited (£2.6m)
from the Priory Group, the acquisition of SC Topco Limited (£3.1m), and the acquisition of Aspris (Arden) Limited

(£0.1mj},

Aspris formation and reotganisation costs relate lo other expenses arising on the formation of the Aspris business as

standalune from the Priory Group and include marketing-refated expenses associated with the new Aspris brand.

Reorganisation costs primarily relate to the revision lo redundancy cosls associated with exil of certain customer

confracts and the implementation of revised management organisational structures in the Group.

Other Uansaction costs relate te the Group's assessment, and execution, of other corporate and property related

transactions.

The Group elected to make a one-off contribution to UNICEF's Ukraine appeal during the period.

11, Taxation

Tax recognised in the ircome statement

2022
Current tax £m
Cuzrent tax on taxable income for the period 1.3
Deferred tax (note 26)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {1.6)
Tax eredited in the period {0.3)

The reasons for the difference between (he actual tax charge for the year and the standard rate of corporation tax
applied to the losses for the year are as follows:-

2022

£m

Loss for the year 27.4)
Tax using the company's lax rate 19% (5.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5.3
Tax rate changes (0.4}
Total éax credited in the period (0.3)
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Taxation (continued)

As aresult of the Finance Bill 2021 the rales of income tax are expected to incresse from 19% to 25% for the period
beginning April 2023,

Tax linbilities are recognised when, despite the Group's belief that its tax return positions are supportable, the
Divectors believe it is more likely than not that a taxation authority would accept its filing position,

‘The Directors believe that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment
of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law.

No material uncerlain tax positions exist as at 31 August 2022. This assessment relies on estimates and assuraptions

and may involve a series of complex judgements about {uture evenls, To the extent that the final tax outcome of
these matters is different than the determination is made.

12. Property plant and equipment

Group
Furniture, Properties
Land and fittings and Motor under
butidings equipment vehicles  construction Total
£m £m £1n £m £m
Cost or valuation
Additions 23 6.5 0.1 32 12.1
Acquired through business
combinations 122.4 29.6 0.6 33 155.9
Disposals (1.0) (0.5) - 0.2) (1.7)
Transfers o 0.6 0.3 ' - (0.9} -
At 31 August 2022 124.3 35.9 0.7 5.4 166.3
Depreciation
Charge for the period 1.9 6.7 0.1 - 8.7
Eliminated on disposal {0.2) (0.3) n - (0.5)
At 31 August 2002 1.7 64 0.1 - 82
Carrying amount
At 31 Aupusi 2022 L 122,6 285 0.6 54 158.1

Under the terms of the Group’s external borrowings there is a fixed charge, in favour of the external lenders, over all
properly acquired for a consideration of over £0.75m. Please refer to note 22 for further information on the Group's
external borrowings.
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{continued)

13. Right of use asse(s and labilities
Group
Assets

Property  Motor vehicles Total

£m fm £m

Cost or valuation
Acguired 1hrough business 150.8 2.4 153.2
combinations
Additions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Modifications 83 - 8.3
Disposals - (0.1) 0.1 0.2)
Al 31 August 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Depreciation
Charge for the period 7.3 1.2 8.5
Eliminated on disposal - ©.50 (0.1)
At 31 Augast 2022 7.3 ! 8.4
Caxrying amount
At 31 August 2022 154.7 L7 156.4
Liabilities

Property  Motor vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Acquired through business combinations 151.0 24 1534
Additions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Modifications 8.3 - 8.3
Disposals - - -
Inlerest 10.2 0.3 10.5
I.ease payments {14.0) (1.3) (153
Foreign Exchange movements 0.1 - 0.1
At31 Aypust 2022 158.6 1.9 160.5
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Right of use assets and liabilities (continued)
Nature of leasiug activities

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Some of these leases provide for
payments to increase each year by inflation or index rate movements. The Group has options to purchase or exlend
the feases of certain properties. As (he excreising of such options is not deemed o be reasonably certain, such
renewal options are not taken into account when delermining the right of usc assets and Habilities. .cases of vehicles
comprise only fixed payments over the lease tertn.

Lease liabilities are duce as follows:

Maturity analysis £m
Year 1 15.5
Year 2 151
Year 3 £4.3
Year 4 13.9
Year 5 13.7
Onwards 2313
3038
Less: unearned interest (143.3)
— 160.5
Analysed as:
Non-Current 1554
Current 5.1
160.5

Amounts recoghised in profit and loss

Anamount of £0.9m has been recegnised in profit and loss in respect of property leases that expired and were not
renewed, and for rolling tease agreements. Cash payments in respect of these leases amouttted to £0.9m,

At 31 August 2022, the Group had no commitments under these agreements in excess of a lwo-month notice period.
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14, Intangible assets
Group
Confractial
Goodwill customer
{Note 15) refationships Total
£m £m £m
Cost or valuation
Acquired through business combinations 69.3 988 168.1
At 31 August 2022 69.3 98.8 168.1
Amortisation
Amortisation charge - 5.0 5.0
Impairment (note 15) 19.7 19.7
At 31 August 2022 19.7 5.0 247
Carrying amount ‘
At 31 August 2022 o 49.6 93.8 143.4

All Intangible Fixed Assets {(“TFAs™) were identified on Purchase Price Allocation exercises (“PPA™) exercises
carried out on behalf of management by an independent experl, at two poinis:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Limited (“PESL” — subsequently rename Aspris Chifdren’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 August 2021

2, Acquisition of SC Topco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Heallhcare (Arden) Limited, lalterly renamed Aspris {Arden) Limited

AlLIFASs have been amortised in line with useful economic lives determined by management al each relevant
acquisition date.

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goedwill and where other IFAs
where there ave indicators of impaitment.

55




Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

15, Goodwill and impairmnent

Goodwill represents the excess of Lthe consideration over the fair vatue of the net assets acquired on the purchase of
the subsidiary companies. In accordance with IFRS, this balance is not amortised and is subject to annual impairment
reviews. Goodwill has been allocated to each cash-gencrating unit (“CGU™) based on Purchase price Allocation
(“PPA”) crercises:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Limited ("PESL” — subsequently renamed Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of 8C Tepco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3, Acquisition of Hollyblue Healtheare (Arden) Limifed, latterly renamed Aspris (Avrden}) Limited

ACSL Sand-  Arden Total

Group castle

Group
£m £m £m fm
Gooedwill recognised during the period 21.0 47.7 0.6 £69.3
Impairment recognised during the period - (9.7 - (19.7)
Goodwill 21.0 28.0 0.6 49.6

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annital review of Goodwiil,

In order to determine if there has been any impairment of Goodwill, management prepared calculations of the
recoverable amount for each CGU, For both ACSL Group and the Sandcasile Care Group the recoverable value is
determined by the forecast present value of future cash flows of the CGU based on 5-vear projcctions ending in a
terminal growth rate assumption. Forecasts are based on the assumptions set out below:

Key Assumptions ACSL Group Sandeastle Care
INiscount Rate 11.0% 10.3%
Terminal Growth Rate 2.0% 1.0%
Operating Margin 10.3% 20.6%

ACSL Group

Since the date of acquisition, the ACSL Group has maintained porformance in line with the budpsted targets set for
the business. Operational challenges, particulatly regarding constraints on the availability of staff have been
cffectively managed, without a material adverse impact on ACSL’s profitability for the period.

Forecast for FY23 is based on budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022. Operating profit is forecast to increase at 2% CAGR between FY24 and
FY27. Replacement capex to maintain the estate has alse been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of ACSL Group on 31 August 202 1 the Group assessed
the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired to be £41.2m, compared to the total consideration of £62.2m, giving
rise to £21.0m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group. As at 31 August 2022 Mauagement assessed the
recoverable amount for ACSL Group to be £241.1m, £19.5m greater than the carrying value, and thus no impairment
to the Geodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the period.
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Goodwill and impairment (continued)

Sandeastle Care Group

Since the date of acquisition, the Sandeastfe Care business has inaintained & high quality rating performance of over
90% post-acquisition, butl the business has been impacted by operational challenges that have rcduced both its
available capacity and utilisation. Whiist aspects of these challenges are not thought to be permanent, they have
impacted the overall assessment of the present value of future cashflows from the business. These challenges include
staffing consiraints that have led 10 reduced total occupancy and an adverse impact on operating margins compared to
the budgeted largets for the business.

Forecast for FY23 is based on the budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with appropriate

adjustments for trading at 31 Aupust 2022, Operating profit is forecast to increase at 1% CAGR between FY24 and
FY27. Replacement capex to maintain the estate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of SC TopCo Limited on 28 January 2022 the Group
assessed the fair value of identifiable nel assets acquired to be £14.0m, compared to the total consideration of £61,7m,
giving rise to £47.7m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group.

Management assessed the recoverable amount for Sandeastle Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m lower than the
carrying vatue of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance sheet date, and as such have impaired the goodwill
associated wilh the CGU by the shortfall In carrying value versus the recoverable amount.

Impairment sensitivitics for ACSL Group and Sandeastle Care Group

If any one of the following assumptions were amended by 1 percentage point, the impact on the impairment value
would be as folloys;

Sensitivities Aspris Sandcastle Care

Discount Rate (1% increase)

Terminal Growth Rate (1% rcdﬁéﬁ)h)

Reduction to carrying value
from £241,1m to £221.2m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m fo £71.6m

Reduction to canying value
from £241.1m 1o £220.7m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m to £71.5m

Operating Margin (1% redustion beyond FY27)

Reduction to carrying value
from £241.1m: to £223.0m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m to £74.8m

Aspris (Arden) Limited

The assets held by Aspris (Arden) Limited consist of 1and and buildings, these were al fair value on acquisition,

there are no subsequent indicators of impairment to the assels of Aspris (Arden) Limited. Since the acquisiticn of
Adrden the business has been performing in line with expectations, and thus rio impairment to the Goodwill arising
on acquisition is required in the pericd.
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16. Investments - Group Subsidiaries
Details of the group subsidiaries as al 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Aspris Mideo Limited
Aspris Bideo Limited

Aspris Children’s Serviees Limited
Coxlease School Limited
Castlecare Group Limited

Progress Care and Education Limited

Speciality Care Limited

Strathmore College Limited

Aspris (Thetford 1) Limited

Aspris New Education Services Limited
Castlecare Holdings limited

Quantum Care UK [.imited

Speciality Care (Rest Homes) Limited
Speciality Care (Medicare) Limited

Specialised Courses Offering Purposefut

Education Limnited

Aspris {Thetford 2} Limited
Dunhall Property Limited
Castle Homes Care Limited

Castlecare Cymru Limited

Castle Homes Limited

Rothecare Estates Limited

Castlecare Education Limited

(continued)

Principal activity

Holding company
Holding company

Specialist education services

Non trading

Non trading
Children’s homes
Holding company
Care delivery
Non trading
Education

Non trading
Childrei’s care homes
Care delivery
Holding company
Care delivery

Non trading
Non trading
Children's care homes
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes

Propetty company

Specialist education services
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Registered office

Tnited Kingdom
United Kingdom
Linited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Proportion of
evwnership
interest and
voting rights

100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1H00%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
106%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Aungust 2022

Investments {(continued)

Thetford Trustee LLP

Aspris {Froup Hoose) Limited *
Aspire Scotland Holdings Limited*
Aspire Scotland Limited*

Galaxy 1 Limited*

Galaxy UK Leisure Limited*

SC Topeo Limited**

SC Bideo Limited**

WNatabra Properties Limited*#
Sandcastle Care Holdings Limited**
Sandeastle Care Linited**
Portixol UK Limited**

Aspris {Arden) Limited

Priory Healthcare LLC*#**

Unless stated otherwise the registered address of cach subsidiary is: The Forge, Church Street West, Woking,

Surrey, England, GU21 6HT

“Company registered address is: 38-40 Mansion house Road, Glasgow, G41 3DW

(continued)

Non rading
Education

Heolding company

Children’s care and education
Children’s care and educalion

Children’s care and education

Holding company
Holding company
Property company
Holding company

Children’s care homes

Property company
Property company

Healthcare

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Uniled Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Uhited Kingdom
UAL

¥ *Company repistered address is' 49 Whitegate Drive, Blackpool, Lancashire, England, FY2 5DG
*** Aspris Group controls Priory Healtheare LLC through a combination of contractual agrecments nnd the ability to direct Ihe financial and

operational management of the entity

100%
160%
140%
180%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
0%

Aspris Holdeo Limited has given statutory guaranlees against all the outstanding liabilities of all wholly owned
subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022, This therehy allowed dormant subsidiaries to be exempt from the requirement to
prepare and file annual accounts under section 394A or the Companies Act, and non-dormant subsidiaries to be

exempl from the annual audit requirement under Section 479A of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31

August 2022,

The Group has control of a 60% interesl in Saudi Healthcare LELC (“SHe”), an entity registered in K8A, which

operates 2 Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh. The operation, although Important o management’s fitvre plans and

strategy in the region, is not seen as malerial in the contexi of these Financial Statements,

During the period the Group loaned £1.1m to SHe, in addition to the £0.1m interest in share capital and £0.3m.
acquired on business combination, SHe did not trade during the period and incurred losses of £0.9m, the Group’s

share of lhese losses £0.5m have been recognised in operating costs.

Investments - Company

Investments made during period - Cost

Aspris Midee Limited
At 31 Aupust 2022

Group

2022
£m

119.1

119.1
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17. Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris Children’s Secvices Limited and subsidiaries

On 31 August 2021, the Growp acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Priory Fducation Services Limited
(latterly named Aspris Children’s Services Limited), obtaining conirol. The principal activity of Aspris Children’s
Services Limited (“ACSL"} is provision of specialist schools, colleges, children’s homes and fostering. ACSL was
acquired by Aspris Bideo Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Aspris Haldco Limited. This transaction was
undertaken to purchase the children’s services and Middle East operations of the Priory Group, of which ACSL and

its subsidiaries were previously members of,

‘I'he 100% sharcholding in ACSL was obtained for cash consideration of £62.2m.

As part of the acquisition, loans totalling £30.1m belween ACSL and ifs subsidiaries, and Priory Group were seitled.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liebilities assumed ave as set out in the

table below:
£m Book  Fair Vahie Fair value
Value adjustments

Assets and liabilities acquired

Property, plant and equipment 134.2 5.0 13592

Right of use assets 153.2 (0.2) 153.0

Intangible assets 27.2 15.2 42.4

Trade and cther receivables 13.7 0.1 13.8

Cash and cash equivalent 1.9 - 1.9

Lease liabilities (153.2) - (153.2)

Trade and other payables (134.0) - (134.0)

Provisions {0.8) - (0.8)

Deferred tax liabilities (3.8} {17.3) (21.1)

Total identifiable asscts __ 384 2.8 41.2

Goodwill _ - - 210

Total consideration 62.2

Satisfied by:

Cash 62.2

Cash flow analysis:

Cash consideration 62.2

Less; cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (1.9
60.3

Net cash outflew arising on acquisition
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Business combinations (continued)

The fair value of the financial assets inciudes receivables with a fair value ol £12.2m and a pross contractual value
of £12.6m. The best estimale al acquisiiion date of the contractual cash flows not to be collected are £0.4m,

The goodwill of £21m arising from ihe acquisition consists of the presence of certain intangibie assets, which do not
qualify for sepurate recognition, such as;

»  Assembled workforce of ACSL, including both the UK and Middie Bast workforce

«  Aspris’ abilily to extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the usefut
ecanomie life anticipated al initial acquisition

= Development of new relationships in the Middle East

None of the goodwill is expected lo be deduetible for income tax purposes.
Acquisition related costs of £2.5m arose as a result of the transaction.
Acquisition of subsidiary - 8C Topeo Limited and subsidiaries

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of 8C Topco Limited (*Sandcastie Care'),
obtaining control, The principal activity of Sandcastle Care is the provision of therapeutic care homes for children.
Sandcastle Care was acquircd to achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is
forused on providing children's service. The transaction provides Aspris wilh greater coverage in the Northwest of
England, where Sandcastle Cares’ properties ave primarily located,
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Business combinations (continned)

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed ate as set out in the
table below:

£m Book Fair value Fair
Yalue adjustments valne
Assets and Ifabilities acquired
Propeity, plant and equipment 24.4 (13.2) 1.2
Right of usc assets 0.2 B 0.2
Intangible asscts 12.0 44.4 56.4
‘I'tade and other receivahles 3.8 - 3.8
Cash aud cash equivalent 36 - 36
Lease liabilities (0.2} - (0.2)
Trade and other payables (2.5) - 25
[ticome tax Hability (1.1) - (1.1}
Loans and borrewings {41.3) - {41.3)
Deferred tax liabifitics (0.2) (15.9) {16.1}
Total identifiable assels (13) 15.3 140
Goodwill . - 417
Total consideration 61,7

Satisfied by:
Cash 61.7

Cash flovy analysis:

Cash consideration 61.7
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (3.6}
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 58.1

The fair value of the financial assets includes recetvables with a fair value of £3.4m and a gross contractual vatue of
£3.4m.,

The goodwill of £47.7m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of certain intangible assets, which do
not qualify for separate recognition, such as;

*  Assembled workforce of Sandeastle Care.
» Sandcasile Care’s ability to extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the
useful economic life anticipated at initial acquisition.

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £3.1m arose as a result of the transaction.
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Business combinations (continuer)

Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris (Arden) Limited

0031 March 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Hollyblue Healtheare (Arden) Limited,

latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited on obtaining control. Its principal activity is & property lessor, The

purchase of Hollyblue Healtheare (Arden) Limited enabled the acquisition of the freehold inlerests in properties
previously leased to the Group. This included properties that had previously formed part of the Priory Group’s
residential adulf carc division. Subsequent te the purchase of Hollyblue {Arden) Limited such properties were

disposed of by the Aspris Group to the Priosy Group at fair value.

The amounts secognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and linbilities assumed are as sel out in the

table below:

£m Book Value | Gl value
Assets and liabilities acquived
Property, plant and equipment 5.5 - 5.5
Trade and other payables 0.1y - 0.0
Income tax liability 0.1) - (0.1}
Deferred tax Habilities N - 0.6 {0.6)
Total identifiable asses 53 ©8) 4.7
Goodwill ) - - 0.6
Total consideration 53
Satisfied by:
Cash §3
Cash flovy analysis;
Cash consideration 3.3
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired -
53

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposcs.

Acquisition refated costs of £0.1m arose as a resull of the transaction.
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. Business combinations (continned)

Impact of the acquirees on amounts reported in the statement of comprehensive income

The amounts of revenue and profit or loss of the acquirecs since acquisition date included in the consclidated

statement of incomic for the reporting period is as follows;

Aspris  Sandeastle  Arden

£m %in £m

Revenue 162.7 16.5 0.0

Operating cost (140.9y (15.5) 0.3

QOperaling profit before impairment and other losses and exceptional 21.8 1.0 03
costs

Impairment and other losses and excepiional costs (8.0) (19.8) 0.0

Qperating profit 13.8 (18.8} 0.3

The revenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the current reporting period as through the acquisition date
for all business combinations that occurred during the year had been at the beginning of the 12 month trading perind

starting 1 September 2021, is as follows:

£m
Revenue 191.0
Operating cost (171.7)
Operating profit before impairntent and other losses and exceptional 193
costs
[mpairment and other losses and exceptional costs (28.3)
Operaiing profit 9.0)
18. Trade and other receivables
Group Company
31 August 31 August
2022 2022
Current £m £m
Trade receivables 19.7 -
Proviston for impairment of {rade receivables 0.1) _ -
Net trade receivables 19.6 -
Acerued income 0.4 -
Prepayments 1.7 -
Loans receivable from joint venture (note 28) 1.0 -
Other receivables 1.8 02
24.5 0.2

All current receivables ave due within | year of balance sheet date, None of these are subject to material or significant
credit tosses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly

funded entities.

Amounts receivable from joint venlure are not subject to interest and ave repayable on demand.
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19. Cash and cash equivalents
Group  Company
2022 2022
£m £m
Cash at bank ) . . 18.1 0.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and at bank. Cash at bank is held with banks or financial
institution counterpatties which are investment grade rated. Management do not cxpect any losses from non-
performance of counterparties,

20, Deferred income

Group

2022

£m

Acquired through business combination 28.9
Deferred during the year 28.8

Recognised during the year o (28.9)
28.8

Deferred income is in respect of services invoiced in advance of delivery aad (s released as services ave delivered,

21. Issued capital and reserves

Allotted, called up and fufly paid shares

2022 2022

No, x000

A Orudinary sharves of £1 each 82,851,341 82,851
B Ordinary sharcs of £1 cach 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,232,266 12
) 85,866,210 84,646
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Issued capital and reserves {continued)
New shares allotted

Class Na, Conslderation
£000
A Ordinany shares of £1 each! 82,851,341 116,861
B Ordinary shares of £1 each? [,782,60G3 2,223
C Ordinary shares of £1 each’ 1,232,266 36
. 85,866,210 119,120

! A Ordinary shares of £1 cach have Full voting and payments of dividend rights, right to distributions alongside B Ordinary shaceholders in
piiority 1o C Crdinary sharehelder, subject to a threshold. Rights to disttibutions once the threshold has been surpassed alongside the B Ordinary
shareholders and C Ordinary sharcholdecs.

2 B QOrdinary shares of £1 each hiave full voting and payments of dividend tights, right to dislabulions alongside A Ordinary shareholders in
prionty to C Ordinary shareholder, subject to & threshold. Rights to distributions once the threshold has been surpassed alongside the A Ordinary
shareholders and C Ordinary shareholders.

# C Ordinary shares of £1 each have no voling rights. ¢ Ordinary shares have righis to dividends and distributions once the threskold has been
surpassed alongside the A and B Ordinary sharcholders.

22. Loans and borrowings
Group
2022

Non-current loans and berrowings £
External loans 165.0

Capilalised debt [ces {5.4)

Exiernal borrowings 159.6

‘The Group enléred into a senior term and revolving facility agreement on 27 August 2021 to facilitate the
acquisition of Sandeastle Care and future acquisitions. As at the end of the peried the drawn senior facilitics of
£165.0m ate secured over the Group’s assels and carry infercst at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate.
The loans are repayable 7 years from the date of completion of the acquisition of ACSL.

External borrowings are recognised at fair value net of transaction costs that are directly attributable to the credit
facilities. At the balance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group’s Loan facilities are subject to a single financial covenant test which is assessed quarterly. This covenant
assesses he total gross Leverage of the Group as a ratio to proforma LTM EBITDA of the consolidated group at
cach quarterty test date. At the balance sheet date the covenant threshold was 7.4x, as at 31 August 2022 the ratio
level was materially betow this threshold at a level of 4.9x, This equates to £11.6m of headroom expressed in terms
of proforma LTM EBITDA.

Asat 31 August 2022 the Group had letters of credit in place amounting to £2.3m. This arhount is ringfenced within
the Group’s total revelving credit facility of £22m for this purpose, with no other amounts drawn under this facility
as at the balance sheel date. These letters issued by the Group's principal bankers to the Group’s insurers, an
employee pension scheme, and 1o support credit granted under supplier cantracts.
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23. Provisions
Legal
provision
2022
£m
Acquired through business combination 0.8
Charged in income statement 0.4
Used during year . VS
. 1.0
24, Trade and other payables
Greup  Company
2022 2022
£m £m
Trade payables 3.1 -
Accrued cxpenses 11.7 -
Amounts due to related parties - 0.9
Boclal security and other taxes 2.3 -
Other payables .44 -
215 0.9

Other payables consist of credit balances, funds held on behalf of ADEK. for the operation and investment of the
school eperated by the Group and savings held on behalf of young persons.

25. Pension

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes, The pension cost charge for the period represents
coniributions payable by the Group to the scheme and amountad to £4.5m

26, Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temperary differences under the Jiability method using a tax rate of 19%. The
increase in corporation tax to 25% is expected 1o be eftective from April 2023, This new rate will be applied to
deferred tax balances which are expecied to reverse as at 1 September 2022.

Deferred tax assels have been recognised in respect of all temporary differences giving rise o deferced tax assets
where the Divectors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

The movements in deferred tax assets and linbilities {prior to the offselling of balances within the same jurisdiction
as permitted by [AS 12) during the pericd are shown below.
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Deferred tax (continued)

Details of the deferred tax liability, amounts recognised in the profit or loss and amounts recognised in other

comprehensive income are as follows:

Recognised in - Recogaised in Recognised in Total
business Income otlter 31 August
combiuntions comprehensive 2022
(Nofe [7) income
Intangible asset differences 23.8 (1.3) 22.5
Tangible asset differences 14.0 03 _ 137
37.8 {1.6) 36.2

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of capital tax losses carried forward in the UK totalling £2.4m

as there js insufficient evidence as to their recoverability.

27, Financial instruments

Finaneial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities comprisc all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, exciuding property, plant and cquipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assefs, prepayments and deferred

tax liabilities.

Group Company
2022 2022
Finaneial asscts £an £1n
Investments in subsidiaries - 119.1
Trade and other receivables 22.8 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 18.1 0.7
40.9 120.0
Financial liabilitics

Trade and other payables 21.5 0.5
Income tax Hability 09 -
Deferred income 28.8 -
Lease liabilities 160.5 -
Louns and borrowings 1596 -

Provisions 1.0
372.3 0.9

There is no difference between the carrying value of financial instruments and their fair value. The Group has no

financial instruments that are measured at fair value.

The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial asseis.
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Financial risk management

The Gronp is expased to financial risks in the fonn of credit, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business. ‘The primary financial risks that the Group is expesed o are detailed below:

Credit visk - Cash deposits and Trade veceivables
Financial instruments which potentiaily expose the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables.

Cash is only deposited with major financial inslitutions (hal satisfy cerlain credit criteria, Credit risk in relation to
trade receivables is not considered to be significant given that the vast majority of revenue is derived from publicly
funded education and care services. The Group provides credit fo customers in the normal course ol business and the
balance sheet is net of allowances of £0.1m for doubtful receivabies. The Group measures (hose allowances at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses using both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group®s historical experience and forward-looking information.

Allowanees against doubtful debts are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated Irrecoverable amounts,
determined by reference to past experience of the counterpariy. The majority of the Group’s allowance for doubtfal
debis relates 1o specific trade receivables thal are not considered to be recoverable, and management only considers it
appropriate o create a collective provision based on the age of the frade recelvable in respect of certsin types of trade
receivables.

The aging of trade receivables at 31 August is as follows:

£m

Curent 49

30-60 days 14.0

60-150 days 0.5
150 days + 0.3

19.7

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other reecivables is approximately equal to their fair
value.

Trade receivables ai least 60 days past due for which no loss allowance has been made at 31 December is £0.7m.

Furiher to the credil risks described on cash and trade receivables the Group does not have any significant credit risk
expostre to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics, The Group defines
counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities.

There is no concern over the credit quality of amounts past due but for which no loss allowances has been recognised
since the risk ia spread over a number of unrelated counterparties which include central and local Government, The
maximum exposure to credit risk al the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentivned
above and cash held by the Group,
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Financial risk management (continued})

Interest vate risk — Senior and Revolving credit focilities containing a variable element linked te Sterling Overnight
Index Avarape

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revclving external credit facilities. The facilities are
denominated in peunds and are borrowed with interest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA raie. Senior
loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 August 2026.

In addition to assessments required by macro-economic events, the Group monitors ifs near term inlerest rate exposure
on & monthly basis, and longer term exposure an # bi-armual basis. This includes the review of the options available
to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently does not have a hedged cormponent to the interest burden on its
external debt. In light of prevailing market conditions, and the high cost of hedging insttuments, the Directors believe
the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rate rises.

Based on modetling performed, a 100 basis point shift in SONIA rates would have a £1.65m increase or decrease on
interest payments due on the Group’s external debt. A 350 basis point shift (being the maximum likely change in
interest rates over the year from the period end) would have an impact of £5.8m on interest payments due on the
Group's external debt.

Liquidity risk

The Group prepares both annual and shori-term cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated
projects. Borrowing facilities are utilised as necessary to finance requirements. The Group has sufficient available
bank facilities and cash flows from profiis to fund current commitiments.

The fellowing table shows the contractual cash flow maturities for financial liabilities:

Total  0-1 years  2-5 years 5+ years

Trade and other payables 21.6 21.6
Borrowings 165.0 165.0
Lease liabilitics ] . ] 3038 155 370 2313

Fovelgn currency visk

Substantially all of the Group's operations are in the UK and as such foreign currency risk is not deemed significant.
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Capital Rislc Management

The Group's objective when managing its capital is to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern whilst maximising returns for stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The Group’s
capilal siructure is as follows:

2022
£
Cash 18.1
Borrowings! (165.0)
Lease linbilities (160.5)
_Equity_ 52.0
5. Excluding accrued interest and capitalised debt fees
Analysis of net debt
Business Cash Other
Combinations flow Interest movement®
£m £m £m £m £m
Cash 5.5 12.6 - - 18.1
Borrowings! (41.3) (123.7) - - (165.03
Net Delst (excluding (358 (111.1) - - (146.9)
Lease liabilities)
1.ease liabilities (153.4) 15.3  (10.5) a1, {160.5)
Net Debit {193.0) (92.0) (10.5) (11.9) (307.4)

t Excluding accrued interest and capitalised debt fees of £5.4m
». Relales (o non-cash movernents in lease liabilities - see note 13 for detafls

28. Related parties

Ultimate parent and confrolling party

The Company’s immediate parent is Standbyco 35 B.V

The ultimate parent is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.Y

The ultimate controlling party is Waterland Private Equity Investments B,V

Aspris Holdeo Limited is the smallest and larpest company for which consolidated financial statements are prepared
for public yse.
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Related parties {confinued)

Balances and transactions hetween the Company and jts subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated
an consolidation and are not digclosed in this note.

The Group is owed £1.4m from Saudi Healthcare LLC, a related party as a joint venture investment which is equity
accounted for in these staiements, there is no intercst charge, and this balance is repayable on demand. Held against
this reccivable is a provision of £0.4m for the Group’s shave of the initial losscs incurred over the Investment amount
inade in Saudi Healtheare LLC, The net of the amounts cwed of £1.0m is detailed in note 18.

‘fhe Group paid @ management charge of £30,000 to WPEF VIII Holding Coiperatief W.A, a related party through
common control.

Prior fo the acquisition of Aspris Group (note 17) Pricry Rducation Scrvices Limited (“PESL”) was a patt of the Priovy
Group. At the time of the transaction Priory Group was u related party. Whilst the Group’s operations were tacgely
autonomous from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of contral support services provided to it
by the Priory Group. These services continued under a transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of the
Group’s acquisition of PESL. This transiticnal sgreement provided for back office support, including use of syslems
and soflware, human resources support, estates and aspects of financial reporting assistance, This transitional stage
included the implementation of Aspris’ own standafone systems and support infrasteucture, the process of which was
completed by 30th November 2022, with all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased 10 be
provided from that date.

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of $C Topeo Limited (note 17), oblaining
control. SC Topco Limited was a related parly by the nature of common ownership. One of the principal purposes of
the acquisition was to achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is focused on
providing children's service.

During the period an amount of £0.4m was advanced to directors at an interest rate equal to the IMRC official rate
of interest, on a term concutrent with the period svith which the Directors remain sharcholders in the Group. Interest
is paid by the Directers annually and early repayment of any portion of the outstanding balance is permitted at any
{ime. During the period repayments of £0.2m were made, with the remaining £0.2m cutstanding at the peviod end
being included in other receivables {note 18)
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Key management personnel

Key management personne! arc these persons having suthority and responsibitity for planning, directing and
contrelling the activities of the Group.

2022

£060

Directors’ emoluments 1,926
_Directors’ post-cmployment benefits L 8

"Total emoluments for the highest paid director were £1,153,000, this included a one-ofl non-recurring reward of
£305,000 relating to the cxceptionally high level of corporate transactions and reqrganisation activity successfully
completed during the period. The value of the Company’s contributions paid to a defined contribulion pension
scheme in respect of the highest paid director amounted to £4,000.

The nymber of Directors to whom retivement beneflts are accrued under money purchase pension schentes is 2,

29. Events after veporting date
Acquisition of BHIS Holdings Limited

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent with the Group strategy of expanding its specialist
education division, the Group completed the acquisition of & speciulist education provider in the UK, BHIS
Holdings Limited, on 1 March 2023,

The acquired business, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximatety 100
primary and secondary school aged young people in the East of England.

To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth cbjectives, the Group entered into an extension of its
available external debl facilities with its exdisting lenders. This new growth facility was agreed and eifective fiom &
February 2023, These facilities provide an addilional £23m of commitied available debt capacity to support the
growth projects of the Group.

In addition, as part of the above acquisition the Group issued additional equity capital to its sharcholders in March
2023, with the above acquisition being funded through a combination of g parlial drawdown of the new growth debt
facility and this new equity capital raise.




